TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN’S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2009

6:45pm — Road Agent
7:00PM — Police Dept.
7:15PM — Planning Board, ZBA, Historical Committee
Conservation Committee
7:45PM — Solid Waste & Recycling Committee

Attending: Selectmen Matthew B. Dworman, Richard SPoelaert & David R. Pendell, Jr.
Others Attending: Road Agent Matt Gallant, Police Chief Reid Simpson, Ed Warren, Teresa Pendell,
Dan Guilmette & Duncan MacLeod.

Chairman Dworman called this Selectmen’s Public Md@ng to order at 6:30PM.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s public & nonjuileeting minutes dated 9/28/09. Mr.
PendelMOTIONED to approve and sign the public meeting minutgsrasented. Mr. Poelaert seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve and sign the non-public meeting minBt€&D as presented. Mr.
Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 3-0. (A willdoelressed at end of meeting).

REGISTER: The Board reviewed the check register dated 10@29/09 in the amount of $39,260.11. Mr.
PoelaerMOTIONED to approve and sign the register as presentedP&frdell seconded. Motion carried
3-0.

BUDGET: The Board acknowledged receipt of thediarter budget report, reflecting 76% revenues
received, and 66% appropriations expended. It wéednthe ¥ quarter will include expenditures for heating
costs and snow plowing.

LIBRARY: It was noted after paying the remaining balancefdu the new sign at the Library; there will

be a remaining unexpended balance from the $46h6060 of $2,160.07. Chairman Dworman asked David
Pendell (Library Trustee alternate) if they weranpling to close the bond soon, and Mr. Pendelloresgd,
yes, they plan to by the end of the year.

PLANNING BOARD: The Board acknowledged receipt of the Planningr@a@eeting minutes dated
10/01/09, along with the Notices of Decision fogitireview.

CONSERVATION EASEMENTS: It was noted the Town’s tax mapper will produgeage that will
reflect the conservation easements in Town.

CALENDAR: 10/15 Planning Board meeting, 10/19 White Goodg Big day, 10/26 Selectmen’s Meeting,
10/29 accounts payable and payroll processing010fgk or Treat 5-7PM, and 10/31 daylight savitigse
ends, set clocks back one hour. The PB & ZBA Hsean provided with the zoning amendment calendar.

BUDGETS: The Board reviewed proposed 2010 budgets:

PLANNING BOARD: It was noted the 2009 default Planning Board btidge $38,000, and the 2010
proposed budget is at $34,000, per recommendatithedlanning Board Chairman David Sullivan.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'’S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN ]



Mr. DwormanMOTIONED to approve the budget at $34,000. Mr. Poelaedrsied. Motion carried 3-O0.

ZBA: It was noted the 2009 default ZBA budget was $2,@0d the 2010 proposed is at $2,000, per the
recommendation of the ZBA Chairman John Daly.

Mr. PoelaerMOTIONED to approve the 2010 budget at $2,000. Mr. Persgelbnded. Motion carried 3-0.
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE: It was noted the 2009 default Historical Commitbeelget was zero, and

the budget was set at $300, therefore, the 201festds at $300, per the recommendation of theokéstl
Committee Chair, Sue St. Martin.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve the 2010 budget at $300. Mr. Poelaedrsded. Motion carried 3-0.

CONSERVATION COMMISSION: It was noted the 2009 default budget for the Crovadion
Commission was set at $650, and the 2010 propasggkeh as recommended by the Chairman Dennis
Quintal, is $650.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve the 2010 budget at $650. Mr. Poelaedrsded. Motion carried 3-0.

ROAD AGENT: Matt Gallant (Road Agent) was present, and it mated the 2009 Road Agent default
budget was at $315,800, and the proposed 2010 bisdage$315,000. Chairman Dworman noted the Road
Agent budget has the unknown factor of how muclwsplowing will be needed, therefore, suggested a
bottom line of $315,800. After discussion, the Bbaembers agreed to add $1,000 to the snow &riee |
item, reflecting a bottom line of $316,000.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to approve the 2010 Road Agent budget at $316}00Pendell seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

NONPUBLIC SESSION: Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to go into a nonpublic session at 6:45PM
under RSA 91-A-3, Il: para (c.) Matters, which ifcussed in public would likely affect adverselg th
reputation of any person, other than a membereobtidy or agency itself, unless such person regaest
open meeting. The Board was polled and the resfittse poll were: Matthew B. Dworman — Yes, Richar
S. Poelaert — Yes, & David R. Pendell, Jr. - Yes.

The Board was polled & determined the divulgencthefinformation would render the proposed action
ineffective & the information will be withheld froie public during the public meeting Minutes oftGher
13, 2009. The results of the poll were: MatthewbDB/orman —Yes, Richard S. Poelaert-Yes, & David R.
Pendell, Jr. - Yes.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s non-public meeting:A0PM. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

Police Chief Reid Simpson, Dan Guilmette, DuncarcMed, and Teresa Pendell returned to the meeting.

POLICE DEPT.: Police Chief Reid Simpson met with the Board:88PM and presented the police dept.
budget. The 2009 default budget was set at $296&fe proposed 2010 is at $312,500, reflecting an
increase of $16,000 to cover increased costs.

The Board members acknowledged the increases agdaries for the department, and not the operating
costs. The Board members thanked the Police Chiidirfding decreases in the operating costs.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'’S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN 2



Chair Dworman noted the payroll increases were atlo® recommended 3%, and Police Chief
acknowledged they were higher, but the numberbased on comparable rates of surrounding towns. In
response to which towns, the Chief responded Kgtmm South Hampton, Newton, Candia, Danville,
North Hampton, Hampton Falls, Newfields, and others

Mr. Poelaert inquired if he could live with a 3%irase. Chief responded, it is up to the Board of
Selectmen. He is not here to argue.

Chairman Dworman inquired about the special deséd. Currently it is at $35, and the Chief is
recommending an increase to $38 per hour. Hedurtbted the volume is down this year, and the Tiswn
reimbursed from the contractor.

Mr. Poelaert suggested revising the salary linastéo 3% increases, and keeping the secretarg autinent
1560 hours, it would reduce the bottom line to at%300,000.

In response to the Secretary position, the Chaédtshe answers the phone, helps the officerghand
public who go to the station. He was trying to ease her hours, but to keep her under the full staieis
without the benefit package.

Chair Dworman recommended keeping the salaries3#6 ancrease across the board, approve additional
hours for the secretary, and bump the Special Deattai from $35 to $40 per hour.

Mr. Poelaert added, it is not a good year for ntbam a 3% increase, and Chief Simpson stated dicis
with it.

When asked if the Chief could get by with the Seageat 30 hours per week, he responded, yes, wgata
by, but wanted to give the Town a little bettensss.

Mr. Pendell mentioned splitting hours between tbkcp dept. and the fire dept., and he was inforthed if
she worked more than 35 hours per week, she waudtifg for full time status and could not be keppart-
time status.

The Board members agreed to increase the secpaiaityon from 30 to 32 hours per week, 3% rate
increases, and $40 per hour for the special detzil

Mr. Poelaert figured the bottom line would be ab®8®2,000, or so. They agreed to have the Adm.. Asst
verify the final numbers.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve the Police Dept. budget, as discussgd adpottom line of about
$302,000. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 3-0

It was also noted at $40 per hour, and reducindptiugs to 1,400 = $56,000, for the special deitad item.

Police Chief Simpson added, currently the vehiate is $8.00, and the Administrative cost rate8i9@. He
recommended both be increased to $10.00 per hour.

The Board members inquired about a special revglitind for the police department similar to the

Recreation Committee, or the possibility of esttiihg a capital reserve fund for acquiring poliedicles
with the Board of Selectmen as agents.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN 3



Mr. PendellMOTIONED to increase the Police Special Detail rate effiecti1/2010 to $40.00, the
administrative costs to $10.00, and vehicle co$t1.00, for a total of $60.00. Mr. Poelaert se@zhd
Motion carried 3-0. (It is currently at $35, $8 & $ $51).

Chairman Dworman mentioned the town ordinances sagdested a work session to reduce the volume of
the packet with the Chief.

As far as warrant articles for the 2010 ballot, @teef is recommending a warrant article for a reewiser to
replace the 2001 at $26,000 with a 3-year leasehpse. If passed, th&"& 3" year payments would be
part of the budget.

Also, he is recommending another full time offie¢a cost of $57,000 including benefits. Chair Dwan
stated he was not even going to talk about thaefGimpson stated, to date, they have not respbtal256
calls during the night shift that the state pohese covered. It was suggested to change the bburs
coverage.

It was noted it would be nice to have 24/7 coveragéthey are not in favor of an additional futhée
officer. Mr. Pendell added he was the one who astd to figure out the numbers, and now we knasv th
number.

It was noted it would be a separate warrant artimé the Board members did not decide whetheobthey
want to put it on the ballot for the voters to diecor not, at this time. In response to Teresal@&grihe
Chief noted it would probably be the most qualifdt time officer who would fill the full time pa®on if
the warrant article passed. They further notedi#artment currently has 4 full time and 5 paretim
officers.

The Board asked the Adm. Asst. to write the waraatitle, and they will look at.
Police Chief Simpson thanked the Board and lefintleeting at 7:55PM.
SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE : Duncan MacLeod, Dan Guilmette and Teresa Penasliwith the Board

to discuss the bids received for solid waste & céng, as our current contract with Waste Managamen
expires 12/31/20089.

Mr. MacLeod stated they met last night, but arereatly with a completed contract. It was noteq tre
looking at Waste Management with increasing thgakng barrel to 96 gallon, and the solid wasta ©4
gallon barrel. The recycling would continue to bery other week.

Mr. Poelaert inquired about the cost to do recycbrnery week. He also asked what other towns are
currently using this program. Mr. Guilmette offetedfind out for him.

It was noted all plastic bags are NOT recyclalifs. Poelaert suggested trying out the new planrroad
in Town before January to see how it works. Ifaed work, great. But if not, we will know. Mr. Guiette
offered to address that with WM.

Mr. Guilmette stated that basically he had a surgrf@arthem. He stated they have received a contrast
WM, and are currently having them revise it. Thaydiread it with a fine-tooth comb, and have retages
corrections, (additions and deletions), after aslsirgy the input they received from the Public Hegaheld.

They have also added an additional piece aboutiaddi carts.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN 4



Mr. Guilmette stated he hopes to have a completoreof the contract by the end of October.

Mr. Guilmette was looking for suggestions from Bward of Selectmen for implementation of the pragra
He expressed concerns with the start date of Jadu&010.

He suggested delaying the start date, doing theadidum piece first, and starting the program latehe
spring. He added Teresa’s suggestion was to dedteation piece in Nov/Dec timeframe, and start Ta
Mr. Pendell noted with the Christmas Holiday, haiggorefer to put it off until later, rather thaoaner. He
would recommend push it off till Feb/Mar, and ededa January.

Mr. Poelaert asked how they plan to educate peddle Guilmette responded it is an ongoing proce¥és.
need to do this to reduce the cost and to reducsadid waste.

Mr. Poelaert asked if this plan becomes a disastest do we do? It was noted the difference betvibe
old contract and the new contract is approx. $2L,0dr. MacLeod stated all of the vendors recomneend
to not go to weekly recycling.

It was further noted the current 96-gallon barrél lbe used for recycling, and a 64-gallon barrél e
provided for solid waste.

Mr. Pendell noted his only concern is with lessddrash barrel. He added two people from the Remm.
expressed their concerns to him, that they woilktifule, coach their kids, and are very busy, sy then’t
want to have to worry about managing their tragb, t

It was noted they need to educate people, and Mclgod suggested keeping the committee as semi-
permanent so they can evaluate and educate tlienési Mr. MacLeod also stated they want to rewttesv
audit reports from WM.

Mr. MacLeod stated they want to give people thdsttitey need, and the answers to their questions.
Mr. Poelaert asked about trying it out on a stiredtown, would WM go along with trying it out? Mr.
Pendell offered the Board of Selectmen pick petpieughout Town to volunteer to try out the program

It was also noted by Mr. MacLeod that the eldedys$ing developments are included in the contraoeyT
will have a dumpster for trash and a dumpsterdoycling. He also noted most of the residents fiioen
elderly housing developments are not here duriegniimter months.

It was noted the elderly housing developments matlbe having barrels; they will have a dumpstetlieir
community.

Mr. Pendell stated he acknowledged the committegsma be semi-permanent to continue to monitor and
educate the people.

Mr. Guilmette added, they need to let people kndvatwt is, and acknowledge it will take time foeth to
adapt. They want to do a direct mailing to edugaiaple, and noted the contractor has been askmdko
up the postage, not the Town to cover the cost.

Mr. Poelaert added that the school just held aiphigaring for the Sargent Fund money, and onlg@jfe
showed up. Mr. Pendell noted at tiéhkaring about 50 showed up at the school, moatigrs of the kids
at the school.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN 5§



It was further noted, besides the direct mailihgytalso have the website to educate people.

Mr. Guilmette stated he will let the Board of Séheen know what other towns are doing it, and ifythe
would do a trial run.

It was noted the 17-gallon recycle bin will go té@&gallon barrel, and the 96-gallon barrel foidealaste
will be reduced to a 64-gallon barrel.

It was suggested that on major holidays, WM proadextra week of recycling (ie. after Christmas).

Mr. MacLeod also explained the furniture pick u$at875 twice a year, and for white goods the esdid
would pay a $35 fee for each item they call inégplicked up to WM, and pay them with a credit caie
Town would not be responsible for billing, the aactor would.

Mr. Guilmette stated they are currently workingtwWwM, and plan to have a contract by the end of the
month.

It was further noted the Town received bids fromstg#aManagement, Bestway, and Northside Cartingy The
have reviewed all of the bids, and have met withemmpany to discuss the options available.

Mr. Pendell asked that all of the bids be provittethe Selectmen. They agreed.

It was also noted that the four elderly housingatigments (Cricket Hill, Maplevale Farms & Woods,
Cornerstone & Country Hills) are included in thentact, with dumpsters available to them for salmbste
and recycling at a cost of about $19,000 per year.

Chairman Dworman commented he would prefer to séte &4-gallon barrels for trash and recycling. Mr.
Pendell stated he sees a problem with the trasbllzdranging from 96-gallon to a 64-gallon barrel.

Mr. Guilmette responded they need to lay it outflgough the bumps in the road, and people wilvgh
the change, it just may take some time.

It was also acknowledged the contract will offex tption of purchasing an additional barrel atst cd $70
- $75, possibly per year, vs. a one time charge.

At this time, the committee members think that¢beent recycle bins will be picked up, and a 64ega
blue barrel will be delivered for solid waste. Therent 96-gallon green barrel will become the ckey
barrel.

When asked approximately what the contract costbifor budgeting purposes, Mr. MacLeod responded
$161,452. Mr. Pendell suggested to budget $175)206h is $10,000 less than the 2009 budget to cover

costs of tonnage, if we exceed what they have ptexdli The other Board members agreed to the $105,20
figure.

At 8:35PM, the Committee members thanked the Baard,Duncan MacLeod, Dan Guilmette, and Teresa
Pendell left the meeting.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN @G



LEWANDOWSKI: Mr. Poelaert inquired about a response to Mr. lredwavski’s letter. The Board
reviewed a letter of response. Chairman Dwort&@iT IONED to insert salaries in the 2009 town report,
as requested by Mr. Lewandowski. Mr. Poelaert seednMotion carried 3-0.

J. OSTOPCHUK: It was noted Julie Ostopchuk asked to be on teadeay (8:00PM), and cancelled today.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the non-public meeting mintiéédated 9/28/2009. Mr. Pendell
requested a change. Mr. PendéDTIONED to approve the minutes as amended. Mr. Poleaswhded.
Motion carried 3-0.

NONPUBLIC SESSION: Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to go into a nonpublic session at 8:45PM
under RSA 91-A-3, II: para (c.) Matters, which i§cussed in public, would likely affect adversdig t
reputation of any person, other than a membereobtidy or agency itself, unless such person resjaest
open meeting. The Board was polled and the resfittse poll were: Matthew B. Dworman — Yes, Riahar
S. Poelaert — Yes, & David R. Pendell, Jr. - Yes

The Board was polled & determined the divulgencthefinformation would render the proposed action
ineffective & the information will be withheld frotthe public during the public meeting Minutes oft@er
13, 2009. The results of the poll were: MatthewbBiorman —Yes, Richard S. Poelaert-Yes & David R.
Pendell, Jr. - Yes.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s non-public meeting§:@0PM. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 3-O0.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s Public meeting at BMOChairman Dworman
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah G. Gallant
Administrative Assistant

Matthew B. Dworman Richard S. Poelaert DaRidPendell, Jr.

TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH SELECTMEN'’S PUBLIC MEETIN G MINUTES OCTOBER 13, 2009-20091013SELPUBMIN 7



